
Planning Board Minutes, May 18, 2016 1 

Borough of Franklin Lakes 
Bergen County, New Jersey 

Planning Board Minutes 
May 18, 2016 

Regular Meeting 
 

Meeting Called to Order at 7:33PM 

 
Open Public Meetings Statement: Read into the record by Chairwoman 
Vierheilig 

 
Salutation to the Flag 

 
Preamble: Read into the record by Chairwoman Vierheilig 
 

Roll Call: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty (absent), Messrs. Gostkowski, 
Lauber, Pullaro, Chairwoman Vierheilig, Messrs. Lazerowitz, Linz, Sheppard, Ms. 

Mucci (absent), Mr. Ochs 
 
Fire Safety Announcement: Read into the record by Chairwoman Vierheilig 

 
Also in Attendance: Mark Madaio Esq., Board Attorney; Ms. Eileen Boland, 
Boswell Engineering/Board Engineer; Ms. Maria Berardi, Planning Board Clerk; 

JoAnn Carroll, Recording Secretary 

 
Board Discussion:  
 

Mr. Sheppard: stated he wanted to inform the Board that the Environment 
Commission is working on a low impact development checklist; are putting 

together what they would like to recommend to the Planning Board in the next 
month; a development approval process to possibly be included. 
 

Mayor Bivona: received a letter from Boswell Engineering which he forwarded to 
Chairwoman Vierheilig and to Mr. Pullaro regarding the Colonial Pointe project; 
the project will be reviewed for compliance; in addition, an ordinance was 

introduced at last night’s Mayor and Council meeting to clarify the generator 
HVAC issue. 

 
Mr. Sheppard: stated he wanted to bring to the Board’s attention some of the 
applications that have been coming before the Board in the recent months; the 

applications are dealing with more and more compromised lots that were 
originally divided because of a challenge and they are finding less and less 

developable area and more comprised area; would like to ask the Chairwoman if it 
would be possible to investigate this issue and somehow recommend to the Mayor 
and Council the possibility of tweaking the ordinance such that when we have 

lots with septic and/or wells, they are large enough to have a septic and/or a well 
and a reserve; many of the lots might be fine for a house, pool, patio and a septic 
as built, but possibly for reserve seems very difficult; some type of a 



Planning Board Minutes, May 18, 2016 2 

recommendation that we should look at the developable area of the lot and not 
just the area of the lot. 

 
Ms. Boland: stated she would be happy to help with this issue. 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if two locations for a septic system were needed. 
 

Ms. Boland: stated the Health Department deals with this issue. 

 

Approval of Minutes: Lauber, Gostkowski 
May 4, 2016 
All in Favor 

 
 
Resolution: Kern, Major Subdivision, 570 Summit Avenue, Block 2301.02, Lot 2.01, 
Approved 
 
Mr. Madaio: reviewed the application and the resolution. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked, in regards to Item #2 on the bottom of Page 2, top of Page 3, if Mr. Madaio 
was referring to the tape of the meeting, and aren’t the tapes destroyed after a year’s time. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the resolution does not change the retention schedule; tries to include the 
idea that this is not the only document/record of the application; wording can be deleted if 
requested; stated it is boilerplate language. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked, in regards to Item #6, “large vacant lot..”; what does “large” imply? 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated it is a lot that is nearly 50% larger than a required lot. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated he doesn’t know what it adds to the resolution; believes it should be 
deleted. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the word would be deleted. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated, in regards to Item #7, the constraints regarding changing the driveway 
from 11 ft. to 14 ft. are not mentioned; in particular the wetlands constraint and the property 
line constraint. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the language would be changed to include “due to constraints.” 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated, in regards to the side yard setback located in the front yard should be 
changed to 7 ft. from 10 ft. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated he will make the change. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked if the statement that the Board agreed to the waiver of the EIS could be 
added. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, May 18, 2016 3 

Mr. Madaio: stated he will add that language. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: referred to the top of Page 5, last sentence, “…contain significantly less density 
than permitted”; we haven’t seen the house yet; should say “will contain..” 
 
Motion to approve resolution with amendments: Pullaro, Lauber 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Gostkowski, Lauber, Pullaro, Chairwoman Vierheilig, Linz, Sheppard 
 

 
Oral Communications: None 
 

 
R. Venos Developers, LLC, Contract Purchaser, Applicant Owner Fred U. Rizzo, 
Deceased, Doug Rizzo, Minor Subdivision, one lot to two lots, 1006 Clark Road, Block 
1314.05, Lot 1 
 
John Rizzo, Esq., applicant’s attorney: described application; before the Board is an 
application for a minor subdivision into what would be two conforming lots and also pending 
is an application for a soil movement permit for the smaller of the two proposed lots; for 
housekeeping purposes, both the first and second quarter taxes have been paid as of this date; 
document submitted to this effect. 
 
Ms. Berardi: stated she confirmed the payment of taxes with the tax office on this day. 
 
John Rizzo, Esq.: stated no public notice of this application was given; the land use law does 
not require public notice for a minor subdivision application where no variances are 
requested; would like the Board to confirm whether or not they are prepared to vote on this 
application tonight with the fact no notice has been given. 
 
Mr. Madaio: confirmed the Borough’s ordinance also does not require a notice for such an 
application; confirmed with Ms. Berardi that this has been the practice of the Board in the 
past. 
 
Mr. Ricky Venetsanos (Ricky Venos for business): sworn in by Mr. Madaio: the applicant is 
R. Venos Developers LLC; formed in the State of NJ; Mr. Venos is a member of the LLC and the 
manager of the LLC: he is familiar with the property; the LLC is purchasing the property. 
 
Motion to open the public hearing on a complete application: Sheppard, Pullaro 
All in Favor 
 
(Continued) 
The LLC is the contract purchaser; owner of the estate is Fred Rizzo; Doug Rizzo is the 
executor of the estate; the LLC will take ownership in September of 2016; Mr. Venos is 
familiar with the minor subdivision application and the soil movement application; 
participated in the preparation of both applications; Mr. Doug Rizzo is aware the application is 
being made; signed affidavit submitted; has retained the engineering firm of Conklin 
Associates; Mr. Venos is familiar with the plans that have been prepared and has taken part in 
the design process; the property in question is 4.25 acres with a private pond on Clark Road; 
looking to subdivide into 2 lots allowing a 3.25 acre with a pond and approximately a full acre 



Planning Board Minutes, May 18, 2016 4 

as the other developed lot; seeking approval of the soil movement permit for the smaller lot to 
undergo development. 
 
Mr. Lauber: asked if a second house was being built. 
 
Mr. Rizzo: stated yes; at this time developing the one lot. 
 
Mr. Tibor Latinscics, Conklin Associates: sworn in by Mr. Madaio;  license still in good 
standing in NJ; qualified as an expert in the field of engineering by the Board; is familiar with 
the property; prepared exhibits; exhibit list submitted; gave details of the application; large 
oversized 4.25 acre property; has 530 ft. of frontage on Clark Road; distinguishing 
characteristic is the pond; there are wetlands on the property; have received a wetlands LOI 
from the State of NJ (Exhibit A6); confirms extent of wetlands; highlighted on Sheet A1 in 
yellow, basically the rear of the property is freshwater wetlands; they received a 50 ft. 
transition area; another environmental constraint is Clark Pond; received a 50 ft. riparian 
zone; front portion of property is currently developed with a large ranch style home, circular 
driveway with a detached side loading garage; 16k of impervious surface with current single 
family home on property; topography is generally level; sloping towards the pond; drops off 
to the wetlands in the rear of the property; proposed is a minor subdivision; front lot is 
proposed Lot 1.02; the lot numbers and addresses have been confirmed by the tax office and 
indicated on Sheet A2; the front lot is fully conforming; frontage on Clark Road; it is a fully 
conforming lot; advantageous topography; every square inch is usable; has good width; very 
desirable lot; footprint of the home shown is the subject of the soil movement application;  Mr. 
Venos resides adjacent to the property; indicates pool to the rear, circular driveway, septic 
system which is detailed on Sheet A3; series of test holes on property; 3 locations; side of 
home, front of home and to the immediate north of the home; witnessed by the Health 
Department; test holes dug on both lots; Exhibit A5 are the findings of the Health Department; 
ideal conditions; fine sand and gravel throughout all test holes; the test holes were 12 ft. deep; 
the groundwater was a few inches above the normal water surface of Clark Pond; when set, 
the location and elevation of the basements that are shown are above the groundwater level 
that is established by Clark Pond; 409.1 water elevation, basement is 413.8; back of the 
residence is at 410; foundation above the water table is 18 inches above the groundwater. 
 
Ms. Boland: stated it should be at 4 ft.; the lot is conceptual. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: stated the subject of the soil movement application is a very specific plan; soil 
movement application is proposed for the front lot; Lot 4.03 shows a conceptual home 
accessed by a 14 ft. wide driveway that is outside the riparian zone and provides a 20 ft. buffer 
to the side line to a courtyard shown with the footprint of the conceptual home; septic and 
patio to the rear to show feasibility for construction; not a specific application for home 
construction; it is a unique lot; seeking to capture the view of the pond by the location of the 
home; indicates a front courtyard which is popular; helpful for emergency vehicles to turn 
around; intrusion of the courtyard would trigger a requirement for DEP approval if future 
homeowners wanted a courtyard; there is a conceptual 500 sq. ft. of disturbance with the 
riparian zone within DEP parameters; Lot 1.03 is a large, oversized lot of 3.25 acres; has legal 
frontage in the vicinity of Clark Pond; passes all bulk requirements; reasonable development 
shown; footprint of the home indicated is 5,474 sq. ft.; very substantial footprint.; that is the 
minor subdivision portion of the application. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, May 18, 2016 5 

Exhibit A3: Plot Plan, Soil Erosion Control Plan; focuses specifically on the development of the 
specific home on Lot 1.02; pool to the rear, home and circular driveway specified; minimum 
16 ft. for driveway pillars for emergency vehicle access; septic system test performed in three 
locations; south of the driveway was found to have excellent conditions; circular driveway 
was found to have suitable conditions; the third location in the northern corner of the 
property was not as desirable for septic; chose the southern front corner for septic which 
leaves the entire back yard open for a pool and other uses; roof leader seepage pits specified 
for Lot 1.02; in terms of the actual soil movement there is an excavation of 934 cu. yds. on Lot 
1.02 and fill of 2,186; there is a large depression to fill in for the existing driveway; stipulate 
soil will come from a reputable source; coordinate with other projects in town; have filed for a 
Bergen County waiver in terms of a minor subdivision; Bergen County Planning Board has 
jurisdiction over all subdivisions; no County facilities are impacted; expecting them to issue a 
waiver; filed this plan for Lot 1.02 with the Bergen County Soil Conservation District for their 
approvals as well. 
 
John Rizzo, Esq: stated there are no waivers being requested; no variances being sought; the 
proposed minor subdivision conforms to the Board’s and land use ordinances; asked Mr. 
Latinscics if there were any concerns regarding the existing septic. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: stated normally those would be abandoned under the review of the Health 
Department; typically done immediately before the demolition of the home; have a benefit of 
water service in Clark Road; existing house is served by a well; well would be abandoned. 
 
John Rizzo, Esq.: asked for Mr. Latinscics to discuss the stormwater management issues. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: stated it is a traditional seepage pit based system; the current home has16, 
661 sq. ft. of impervious surface; Lot 1.02 is basically a redevelopment of the front portion; 
reducing the impervious coverage by 16k sq. ft.; 4 dry well seepage pits are specified; they are 
above the groundwater of Clark Pond; the wetlands do not impact Lot 1.02 at all; the soil 
movement plan conforms to the Borough’s soil movement ordinance. 
 
Ms. Boland: stated the Borough requires a 15 ft. buffer along all property lines except for the 
construction of the driveway; the septic and seepage pits have to be relocated to 15 ft. back 
from all property lines. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: stated they would have to move the septic back 5 ft. 
 
Ms. Boland: stated drainage calculations are needed to show they can support the driveway 
and roof. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the foundation drains can be legally discharged to the 
wetlands. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: stated they can; a permit may be needed; will have to coordinate with the 
DEP. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if that was the same for the riparian zone disturbance. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: stated, yes, if the future homeowner wants the courtyard. 



Planning Board Minutes, May 18, 2016 6 

 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked what would happen if the homeowner wanted a pool. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: stated the pool could not be large, but one could fit. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: asked, procedurally, if the application was approved this evening, the plans do 
not say “conceptual” on Lot 1.03, so in affect, we are approving what is on Lot 1.03. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: stated the plans can be revised to show conceptual. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the house is conceptual only; the Board is not approving the house; just 
the creation of the lots; the Board is approving the improvements on Lot 1.02 because of soil 
movement; we are approving that home and that configuration; not set in stone but the soil 
movement numbers can’t be altered. 
 
Mr. Pullaro: stated he believed the Board had stopped approving soil movement applications. 
 
Mr. Lauber: stated it is part of the subdivision application. 
 
Ms. Boland: stated she felt the Board should vote on it because it would be in front of the 
Board anyway; felt the Board would want to see it; it can be approved based on the Borough’s 
standards. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: asked to clarify one item; very aware that no disturbance is permitted 15-20 
ft. off the property lines; when the home and the very large driveway are demolished, there 
will be an inherent disturbance on Lot 1.03 outside of the footprint of Lot 1.02 by very nature 
of the demolition; wanted to have that point on the record. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked if that disturbance goes into the setback for the wetlands. 
 
Mr. Latinscics: stated to the very corner but that is not disturbance of vegetation, just asphalt. 
 
No public questions or comments 
 
Motion to close public hearing: Lazerowitz, Pullaro 
All in Favor 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked if the Board was approving both the house and the subdivision. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the applicant is locking into this house because they are looking for a soil 
movement permit; the Board does not get to approve a single family house; they are locking 
into a design in relation to the soil movement permit; the rear lot is conceptual. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked what would happen if the plan for the house changes. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated it would not affect the Board unless it changed the soil movement and if 
Ms. Boland wasn’t able to handle it herself or if it required a variance; other than that Ms. 
Boland could handle. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, May 18, 2016 7 

Motion to approve, subsequent to Ms. Boland’s comments: Lazerowitz, Mayor Bivona 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Gostkowski, Lauber, Pullaro, Chairwoman Vierheilig, Lazerowitz, Linz, 
Sheppard, Ochs 
 

Voucher: Lauber, Lazerowitz 
 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Gostkowski, Lauber, Pullaro, Chairwoman Vierheilig, Lazerowitz, Linz, 
Sheppard, Ochs 
 
Mark Madaio, Esq., Planning Board Attorney 
 Meeting attendance, 5/4/16  $300.00 

 
Motion to adjourn: Sheppard, Lazerowitz 
All in Favor 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:33PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
JoAnn Carroll 
Recording Secretary 
May 22, 2016 
 
 


